AGENDA

Lower Neuse Basin Association, Inc.®
Neuse River Compliance Association, Inc.®

September 5, 2024
Goldsboro, N. C.

10:00 a.m.
Welcome, Roll Call, and Introduction of Guests
* Member Introductions
Approval of Minutes for May 2, 2024 (AI) — (pages 2 — 4)
LNBA/NRCA Financials —
* May, June, July, and August, 2024 Treasurer’s Reports (Al) — (page 5)
* FY 2023-24 Year to Date Expenditures — (page 6)
* 2024 Draft 990 Tax Returns -
LNBA/NRCA Bylaw Revisions for Consideration -
Neuse Basin Modeling Update — (pages 7 — 8)

LNBA Updates -

* Sampling Report — May, June, July, and August 2024 — (page 9)
* DWR MOA with LNBA -

NRCA Updates -

* NRCA Permit Renewal Update -

* NRCA 2023 Midyear Draft Report — (page 10)

* Nature Conservancy Letter — (page 12)
LNBA/NRCA Training Workshop for 2024 Review -

Member Reports -

Next Meeting and Adjourn — November 5, 2024, City of Kinston, N. C.

Action Items (Al)



Lower Neuse Basin Association®Neuse River Compliance Association®
May 2, 2024 Meeting Minutes
City of Wilson, Wilson, N. C.

Attending:

Chuck Smithwick Contentnea MSD Jonathan Bulla Town of Cary

Lori Avent Town of Apex Corrie Bondor Town of Cary

Dan McLawhorn McLawhorn Legal Ed Buchan City of Raleigh

Andrew Stevenson Aqua, N. C. Justin Bauer Town of Benson
Reggie Hicks City of Durham Joshua Baird Town of Clayton

David White Town of Clayton Adam Stephenson Town of Fuquay-Varina
Richard Hamilton City of Goldsboro Anthony Futrell Carolina Water Service
Tony Konsul Carolina Water Service James Blalock Town of Clayton
Jimmy Pridgen City of Wilson David Suggs CovationBio

Dan Wall Johnston County Nicholas Eatmon City of Wilson

Jay Sauber Sauber WQC T.J. Lynch Hazen & Sawyer

Ron Boquist Waypoint Anal. Benjamin Overton City of Kinston

Brian Pridgen Contentnea MSD Drake Robart CWS/Town of Snow Hill
Haywood Phthisic LNBA/NRCA

The Chair, Chuck Smithwick, called the meeting to order and welcomed everyone. The roll was called and
there were 12 of 19 members present representing the LNBA and 14 of 24 members present representing
the NRCA. There was a quorum present for both associations and guests were introduced and recognized.

Board Minutes — The Board Minutes for the February 1, 2024 meeting were presented. Being no revisions,
Jimmy Pridgen made the motion to approve, seconded by Dan Wall, and approved by the Boards.

LNBA/NRCA Financials - Treasurer's Report — Jimmy Pridgen presented the Treasurer's Report for the
period of February, March, and April, 2024 to the Board. As of April 30t, the LNBA account balance is
$244,476.06 and NRCA account balance is $355,51.23. Also available for the Board’s review were the
year-to-date expenditures for both associations. Following discussion, Dan Wall made the motion to
approve the reports as presented, seconded by Jimmy Pridgen, and approved by the Boards, respectively.

Mclawhorn Law Agreement — Haywood reported to the Board the agreement with McLawhorn Law would
expire Jume 30t and recommended to the NRCA Board to renew for another year. Following discussion,
Jonathan Bulla made the motion to approve, seconded by Reggie Hicks, and approve by the Board.

Executive Director Service Agreement — Chuck presented the Boards with the terms of the Executive
Director Service Agreement that PCi was requesting. The term would be 3 years at an hourly amount of
$85 (budgeted at 1,040 hours annually), and reimbursable expenses including the cost of the financial
software. Haywood noted that he is entering into his sixteenth year serving the Boards and noted it has
been a pleasure to see the work the members have achieve in reducing nitrogen from their facilities.
Following discussion, Jonathan Bulla made the motion to authorize the Chair to execute the agreement,
seconded by Ed Buchan, and approved by the Boards.

Neuse Watershed Modeling Update — Haywood presented a memorandum from Dr. Marty Lebo on the
work his firm has completed to date. The review is continuing with the draft watershed model should soon


hmp3r
Text Box
 2.



be delivered to the Division.
LNBA Updates —

Work continues on the Lower Neuse River Monitoring Service Contract No. 6 with Waypoint Analytical. All
sampling was completed in November and December with the exceptions listed below:

Work continues on the Lower Neuse River Monitoring Service Contract No. 6 with Waypoint Analytical. All
sampling was completed by Waypoint in January, February, March, and April with the exceptions listed
below:

January 2024

01/30/24 - J5630000 (Little River at Riley Hill Road near Zebulon) - Unable to collect due to bridge construction.

February 2024

2/08/24 - J4690000 (Middle Creek, Sunset Lake near Holly Springs (SR-1152) - Unable to collect due to bridge
construction.

March 2024

03/04/2024 - 44520000 (Swift Creek at Steel Bridge Rd nr Smithfield) - Unable to collect due to construction.
03/21/2024 - 45630000 (Little River at Riley Hill Rd nr Zebulon) - Unable to collect due to bridge construction.

April 2024

4/25/24 - J4690000 (Middle Creek, Sunset Lake near Holly Springs (SR-1152) - Unable to collect due to bridge construction.
All invoices have been processed and paid through March, 2024.

Memorandum of Agreement with DWR (July 31, 2024) — The draft agreement from DWR has
been received and distributed to the Executive Committee for review. The signature authority list
has been updated so please review the list. If any changes occur related to the signature authority
between now and completion of the MOA agreement please contact me immediately.

LNBA Annual Report for 2023 — Haywood reported the LNBA Annual Report was submitted as required
by the Memorandum of Agreement. Graphs illustrating the annual nitrate-nitrite and TKN concentrations
and one illustrating the nitrogen concentrations for the past 10 years were presented.

NRCA Updates -

NRCA Permit Renewal Update — Haywood reported that the NRCA has not received notice of its permit
renewal request. The Executive Committee received a draft in January and submitted draft comments to
the Division. Haywood recommended the NRCA Board approve the draft comments and submit to the
Division for the record. Following discussion, Dan Wall made the motion to approve the comments and
submit to the Division, seconded by Jimmy Pridgen, and approved by the NRCA Board.

NRCA Annual Report for 2023 — Haywood reported the NRCA annual report was submitted as required by



hmp3r
Text Box
 3.



the Association’s NPDES permit. The members delivered 2.51 mg/L of total nitrogen to Neuse estuary for
2023. The NRCA is currently at 42% if its permit nitrogen allocation for end of pipe discharged effluent.

Annual Training Workshop Committee — Haywood reported the committee was close to completion on
the program for 2024. The dates for the workshop are July 30t in Raleigh and August 1stin Kinston.
Registration will begin in early June.

LNBA/NRCA Delegates — Haywood reminded the membership to please keep the membership delegates
updated by notifying him.

The next meeting is scheduled for September 5, 2024 at 10:00 hosted by the City of Goldsboro. With no
further business, the meeting was adjourned.


hmp3r
Text Box
 4.



Lower Neuse Basin Association, Inc. / Neuse River Compliance Association, Inc.

Treasurer's Report

LNBA

Balance Forward: (checking per bank statement - 4/30/2024)

Debits: Waypoint Analytical, Inc. (LNBA, Invoices)
Waypoint Analytical, Inc. (Raleigh, Invoices)
City of Raleigh (Workshop)
River Delta Consulting
PCi (Invoices)

Total Debits

Credits: Interest (checking)
Interest (savings)
Membership Dues

Checking Account Balance (per bank statement -8/31/2024)

Total LNBA Account Balance

NRCA

Balance Forward: (per bank statement -4/30/2024)

Debits: PCi (Invoices)
WSP, Inc.
City of Kinston (Workshop)
River Delta Consulting
Sauber Water Quality Consulting
McLawhorn Law Office

Total:
Credits: Transfer from Checking to Savings Acc't
Interest (Savings)
Interest (Checking)

Membership Dues

Account Balance (per bank statement - 8/31/2024)

Total NRCA Account Balance

Checking
Savings

Checking
Savings

Checking
Savings

Checking
Savings

9/2/2024

69,093.21
178,382.85

32,453.20
4,510.98
1,038.70

420.00
6,768.50

45,191.38

35.83
1,807.46
82,783.40

106,721.06
180,190.31

286,911.37

67,203.24
288,447.99

11,316.00
15,791.50
822.00
420.00
549.00
400.00

29,298.50

2,922.71
30.76
35,056.86

72,992.36
291,370.70

364,363.06



hmp3r
Text Box
 5.



00000'0¢ $ 0000068 $ 000006k $ 00°005F $ 000009 $ 00000 $ 000007 $ 00000Gyr $ 0000SY ¢ Jabpng

€0'1SS'le $ 06vey'.S $ 00'8EC'9L $ 000VL'L  $ 00009C $ 000S9 $ 060.2') $ 001060 $ 00629 $ 2

GLT6TY 00'957'€ 00°6¥S - 00°00¥ - - 002052 - aunp
TA LT 00'G96'C - 000cy - - - 00652 - Rew
G8'006'G 00'956'C - - - - - 00'956'C - ludy
- 00'l€l'8) 00°000°G} - - - - 00'lEl'e - WIEN
GL'l6C 00'702'G - - 00009} - - 00709 - Arenige4
€1°069 006912 - - - - - 00'0v52 006297 20z ‘Arenuer
SYLLL 00'109°C - 0008} - - - 00'leyr'e - Jaquisdeq
- 0025€C - 0008} - o 002LL'T - JaquisnoN
05046 00'629°€ 00'6¥S 0008} 00009 00099 - 0000} - 18q010
GL0cy 00'7€2°C - - - - - 00€2'C - laquiydes
- 062207 - - - - 06'0.2'} 0025LT - 1snbny
- $ 00699 § o000y $ 0008k $ - $ - $ - $ ooeeeT § - $ €zoz ‘Aine
‘aul ‘dSM lejoL jue}NSuU0)  SBJIAIAS I [ebe ulwpy Buluies]  sedIARS QT JUBIDIWIS VOuN

00vv0'8l $ 00708'69) $ 0000¥'8L $ 00005F  $ 000000 $ 00°000°F $ 00000C $ 000051 $ 00096 $ 1obpng

e6Er0'8l  § 20020°9€l § 00°€LO'ZL $ 007096 $ - $ 00059 $ O¥'8l8 § L06LC6L $ 0965€°L6 $ [El0L
99'€05'} Y5 '€9Y'6 - - - - - v205¢’') 0£€LL'8 aunp
99'€05'} 86'622'0} - 00°0¢y - - - 89'969'} 0£€LL'8 few
99'€05'} ZEY0L'6 - - - - - 20165} 0£€LL'8 udy
99'€05'} Y€'66L'7C 00°000G} - - - - 70989} 0£€LL'8 Ylep
99'€05'} 21990z} 00€10°C - - - - 78'6¢6'} 0£€LL'8 Arenige4
99'€05'} 12'986'6 - 0008} - - - 16269 0£€LL'8 ARSI
99'€05'} 06'92.°6 - - - - - 09€19'} 0£€LL'8 Jaquisdeq
99'€05'} 71'8.G°6 - - - - - v8 vl 0£€LL'8 JaquisnoN
99'€05'} 0€'€90°0} - - - 00059 - 0000¢"} 0£€LL'8 139010
99'€05'} 91'v8.'6 - 0008} - - - 980671 0£€LL'8 ELITEN
99'€05'} L0560} - 0008} - - 01’818 Leees't 0£€LL'8 Jsnbiny
99°€0s't  $ S0€96 § - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 66551 $ ocell'e $ €20z ‘Ainp
ybiojey lejoL jJuB}NSUO)  SBDIAISS M |eba uiwpy Bulutes)  saomeg @3 Buuojuopy VvaN1

¥202/¥0/9 -3eq

¥2-€20¢ Ad 4o} saunjipuadx3 ajeq 03 Jeax VOUN/VENT


hmp3r
Text Box
 6.



\\\I)

Www.wsp.com

MEMO

TO: Haywood Phthisic
FROM: Martin E. Lebo
SUBJECT: Neuse Watershed Model Review Update

DATE: August 28, 2024

PROJECT OBJECTIVE

The overall objective for the project is to review the watershed model being developed by
RESPEC under contract with NCDEQ for use in evaluating transport factors for Nitrogen in
the Neuse River basin.

BACKGROUND

The authorized project focuses resources on evaluating the calibration of key components
of the watershed model when the calibration is nearly complete. Key components are how
the model simulates flow throughout the watershed, how the model simulates the
deposition and erosion of particles, and how the model simulates the transformations of
different forms of nitrogen.

The WSP team participated in a discussion with the model development team (RESPEC)
and staff from NCDWR on September 25, 2023, on progress in model development through
the time of the meeting. Access to modeling files during the development process was
requested and granted.

RECENT ACTIVITY

The WSP project team has been able to gain access to modeling files from RESPEC and has
evaluated the calibration of water movement and nitrogen concentrations throughout the
watershed. Some recent activities are:

e February 27, 2024 - memo on calibration of flows provided to client and modeling
team.

e March 23, 2024 - model results for water quality and revised flows received.

e April 24, 2024 - internal evaluation of updated flow calibration provided to client.
The updated flow calibration showed some improvements in response to the
comments provided by WSP on February 27, 2024.

e June 19, 2024 - memo on revised calibration of flows and calibration of water
quality parameters provided to client and modeling team. Areas for improvement


hmp3r
Text Box
 7.



Page 2

\\\I)

in simulated water temperature and nutrient parameters were identified for the
model development team.

ANTICIPATED SCHEDULE

A draft model development report has been prepared and is in NCDEQ review. WSP will
request a copy for review to provide an assessment of how well the model simulates flow
and nitrogen delivery to the Neuse Estuary. RESPEC provided an update to WSP on August
28, 2024, on the modeling report review status.


hmp3r
Text Box

hmp3r
Text Box
 


hmp3r
Text Box

hmp3r
Text Box
 8.



Lower Neuse Basin Association @

TO: Board Members

FROM: Haywood Phthisic, Executive Director

SUBJECT: Sampling/Monitoring Report for September 5, 2024 Board Meeting
DATE: September 3, 2024

Work continues on the Lower Neuse River Monitoring Service Contract No. 6 with Waypoint Analytical. All
sampling was completed by Waypoint in May, June, July, and August with the exceptions listed below:

May 2024

05/23/24 — 44868000 (Middle Creek at SR 1375 near Banks) - Unable to collect due to road closure.
June 2024

6/10/24 — J4080000 (Poplar Creek at SR 2049 near Knightdale) — Water level too low to collect sample, field
parameters only.

6/20/24 — J4115000 (Marks Creek at Neuse River Trail near Archer Lodge) — Water level too low to collect sample,
field parameters only.

6/06/24 — J4690000 (Middle Creek at SR 1152 near Holly Springs) — Unable to sample due to bridge construction.

6/20/24 — J5010000 (Middle Creek at NC 210 near Smithfield) — Unable to sample due to bridge construction.

6/10/24 - J5630000 (Little River at Riley Hill Road nr Zebulon) — Unable to collect due to bridge construction.

6/20/24 — J5630000 (Little River at Riley Hill Road nr Zebulon) — Unable to collect due to bridge construction.

July 2024

7/18/24 - J5010000 (Middle Creek at NC 210 near Smithfield) — Unable to sample due to bridge construction.
Alternate site has been identified and was sampled 7/30/24 (official site Station number pending).
7/01/24 - J5630000 (Little River at Riley Hill Rd nr Zebulon) - Unable to collect due to bridge construction.
7/16/24 — J4115000 (Marks Creek at Neuse River Trail nr Archers Lodge) — Water level too low to sample; field
parameters only.
711124 — J4690000 (Middle Creek at SR 1152 nr Holly Springs) Construction complete, samples collected.

August 2024
8/8/24 - 5390800 (Hanna Creek at Ivey Rd near Benson) - Unable to sample due to flooding.

8/19/24 - J6890000 (Contentnea Creek at SR-1622 near Wilson) - Road closed due to construction.
8/19/24 - J5630000 (Little River at Riley Hill Rd nr Zebulon) - Unable to collect due to bridge construction.

All invoices have been processed and paid (partial) through July, 2024.

Memorandum of Agreement with DWR (July 31, 2024) — The MOA with DWR has been
executed and distributed.


hmp3r
Text Box
 9.



sjeq

/9N
/oW

89°C
05T

J1010841Q 8ABNOBXT ‘||| ‘OISIUIYd ‘N poomAeH :Ag paiedaid Moday JesApin SVOHUN €

:(1eahpiw) $g-£zZ0z Ul uoNgUu0d Jajem punoib yym uopesyuasuo) usbousN |ejo) abelaay -z

:(Jeahpiw) $z-£20z Buunp siaquiay YOHN Ag adid Jo pug uoiesjuaouod uabolN |ejo] abelany |

UOI}EI100SSY 80UBldWO) JBARY 8SNSN ‘UBLIIBYD NOIMUNWS %oNyD

‘S31ON

‘abpajmouy Aw Jo 1saq 8y} 0} 9)9|dwod pue ajendde s| uodal siy} Jey Ajpao | “spodas Buuojiuow abieyasip Ajyjuow ,siaquisw aapiwiad-00 wolj paljdwod usaq sey poday aoueldwo) siy |

768205 T0SLLTT 662856 T0L'STT  |06S°LTT

svT  |sve'oT 0 £97'TT 0 %00T |[8v€9T €97'1TT SLT0 009°0 TTTEE00ON "ou| ‘swa)shkg SMO

+00T  |ooz's 0 0 0 %00T |09s‘s VN 7880 0980 09%768000N Aunog usnein
9% LEV'0T 0 00%'TC 0 %00T  |LE¥'0T 00t‘TC 897°'T 0ST'C €GCTCO0ON Yoo[eAeH o AiD
44 L8E'LT 0 TTv'6€ 0 %00T |£8€'LT 12V'6€ 9€E'T 00S°€ 9T8E000DN juiod Auusyd SYON
42 SYS‘ov 0 01Z'v9 0 %00T  |StS'9v 0TZ'v9 [43%7 0059 87ESCO0ON uieg maN 4o Aio
T vLv'T 0 SY8LT 0 %0L  |VES'E €61'SC 6v2°0 009°€ 09/€0000ON "0u| ‘olguoneAo)
44 £08'S 0 0L6'ST 0 %0L |o62's 00T‘LE €797 00S°€ LLOTEO0DN dSIN esujusjuoy
144 £98°6T 0 16988 0 %0L |9Lg's8t TTL'92T 00t 0S8'TT 9ETZYTO0DN (leuoibay) uojsuiy jo Ano
zs 1S0°€ 0 €16'S 0 %0L  |6SE'Y Ly¥'8 TvE0 0S.°0 7¥9TZ00ON abueine jo umo|
143 8vT'Sh 0 9/8'6€T |0 %0L  Jov9'v9 7T8'66T S0S°8 00T'¥T 676E€C000N 010gsp|o9) Jo A1)
v 8 0 82T 0 %0L |1zt 09Z‘s 81T°0 VN LT¥E€000ON jue|d 897 4 H ~ ABisuz axng
8T L€6'TT 0 £76'8L 0 %0s |vis'sy 988°/ST T6v°L 000'tT 906£C000N uos|im Jo AHD
o 60T 0 LvL'T 0 %0s |eTzC 7€9°s LTT0 00S°0 T¥80C00ON [IlH MOUS Jo umo|
6 SS6'T 0 90T'TC 0 %0s |ote'c 112ty SY0'T 00S°€ T/S6T00ON dj|iAuLIe JO Umo|
18 068°C 0 8YS'E 0 %0s |esL's 960°L 6SE0 0€9°0 T6879000N Aluay) Jo umo
9 096'6T 0 8€L'SE 0 %05 0z6'6E 9L¥'TL 60T'S 0056 9T/0E00DN Aunod uojsuyor
42 Svo‘s 0 vze'y 0 %0s o609 LY¥'8 ¥92°0 0S€°0 #959000N (DN enby) ‘Auojo ssnsN
z8 vse'e 0 9TH'TT 0 %0S |,0L'8T 7€8'ee €89'T 00S°C €S¥ST00DN uojfe|D Jo umoy
61 6972 0 0£E'ET 0 %0S  [|8€6'y 099'9¢ %060 00T°C 9TE6L000N Yo810 eI ~ ybieey jo Ano

0£8'8Z VN %0s  |o99'Ls wN VN VN VN Jajep punoig ~ ybiejey
S £€6'€ST 0 wz'tre o %0S |,98'20¢ €1€'189 9veE'LY 000°SZ €€06C00ON asnaN ~ ybiejey Jo Ano
LS ¥9T'0Z 0 LOV'SE 0 %05 |8CE0Y 718°0L 09%'C 000°€ 6SL0E00ON %9810 Yws ~ ybieley jo A1o
8T ¥0T'9T 0 S0T'06 0 %0s |soz'ze 112°081 €8/°S 008°¢CT ZOTS900ON ymnos ~ AieQ jo umo|
z€ 8IT'ET 0 €29'1L 0 %05  |9€2'9Y 9T EVT 7179 000°CT 6/887000N UHON ~ A1eD jo umo |
(i} 9687 0 SESOT 0 %0s |z6L'6 0L0°€€ 0860 006'T 68€0Z00DN uosuag Jo UMo_.
147 062'8 0 vL2'0C 0 %0S  |6£59T LYSOp 9ST'T 009°€ 0S0%9000N xady Jo umo|
61 €€T'T 0 098'S 0 %0T  |veeTt 0zv'ee 80S'T 00S'S ¥789C000N VSYMOS
99 €89 0 wo'T 0 %0T | 6789 vt 99T'T 000°€ €€792000ON ybnoiogsi|iH Jo umo|
4 €20, 0 1916 0 %01 | zez'oL S59°L6 GEE'6 000°0T L #¥8€200ON wey.ng 4o ANo
uoneosoly | (4A/s97) (IA/s97) uoneodoly |junowy | euoz | (4A/SqT) (@INEep)) (@on) (@on) #
Asen)s3 Aanea | 2oz uoneooy | Asenis3 ases [uodsuel] | abieyosiq uonedo|ly | moj4 ‘bay MO|4 Hwiad ALITIDOVA
10 % 202 NL paisnlpy | sequely | |enuuy NL Joquis\ [ NLJ9qwaw | +2-€202 Hwiad S3AdN
AYVN1ST 3dld 40 AN3 TO000JDN :# HwJad SIAdN
G40 | bed ¥20¢ ‘9z snbny

20z 40f (£Z0Z ‘0€ dunr niyl €20z ‘T AInr) 14oday ip3aj piN uabouN (0301 1foiqg

NOILYIDOSSY FONVITdWNOI HIAIY ISNIN



hmp3r
Text Box
 10.



(un) jjeyutey 42D

0T

0c¢

(013

ov

0S

09

0L

08

06

(ur) Jjejuey DD s (SN TAINL NL AJen)ST e (SQIIN) PEOT NL ||]oMUIE]G 10 s Auenis3 01 (SOIIA) NL VOYN e

Jeap

€C0CTC0C0C0C6TOC8TOCLTOCITOCSTOCYTOCETOCCTOCTTOC0T0C6002¢800¢£00C9002500¢1700C€00CC00ZTO0C000C666T866TL66T966T5661

~—— |

\V4

0000S8L[ UONE]S ‘[[dMuJeg 1104 1e peo usSollIN [el0L

T

0

(o]

o
-

[

14"

9T

81

'sq| uol||iw ‘uadoJlIN |eloL


hmp3r
Text Box
 11.



“I am the Executive Director of the Lower Neuse Basin Association and Neuse River Compliance
Association and our member, the City of Wilson, received the attached letter. The letter is of interest
but we would like more information regarding this program such as what are you calling a “peer group”?
Is this comparison based on permitted discharge flow, facilities located in the same river basin, and what
are the permit parameters (such as advance secondary treatment, tertiary treatment, or advanced
treatment (biological nutrient removal facilities)? | can be reached at 919.796.8049”".

“Thank you for your email message. I am happy to try to answer your questions. First, you
inquire about the “peer group”. For the project, we defined the peer group as all National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)-regulated facilities operating in the same state
that discharge biological oxygen demand (BOD) into surface waterbodies. Second, you inquire
whether the comparison was based on particular factors. We did not base the comparison on
permitted discharge flow. Instead, we focused on the permitted discharge limit regarding the
amount of wastewater pollution. We did not base the peer group on the same river basin but
rather the same state. And we did not base the comparison on the type of treatment; again, we
focused on the permitted amount of pollution (i.e., effluent limit). I hope that my answers
satisfactorily answer your questions. If not, I am happy to elaborate.

This informational letter was our first attempt to provide peer comparisons to facilities in EPA
Regions 3 and 4, and we appreciate any feedback on the letter. We had discussed over many
months how best to construct the peer groups and we decided to start with a broad group using a
common pollutant.

Thank you again”

12.



hmp3r
Text Box
 12.





